CARSON WATER SUBCONSERVANCY DISTRICT
BOARD OF DIRECTORS
AND CARSON RIVER WATERSHED COMMITTEE

NOTICE OF PUBLIC MEETING

DATE: February 17, 2021
TIME: 6 pm
LOCATION: Video Conference ZOOM Meeting

NOTICE TO PUBLIC: The State of Nevada and Carson City are currently in a declared State of Emergency in response to
the global pandemic caused by the coronavirus (COVID-19) infectious disease outbreak.

In accordance with the Governor’s Declaration of Emergency Directive 006, which has suspended the provisions of NRS
241.020 requiring the designation of a physical location for meetings of public bodies where members of the public are
permitted to attend and participate, public meetings of Carson Water Subconservancy District will NOT have a physical
location open to the public until such time this Directive is removed.

Members of the public who wish to participate during a public meeting may do so by providing public comment during
the two designated public comment periods, indicated on the agenda, via telephone.

To join by telephone, you must call (712)451-0750 and then enter Access Code: 411219. You may also provide public
comment in advance of a meeting by written submission to the following email address: catrina@cwsd.org. For
inclusion or reference in the minutes of a meeting, your public comment must include your full name and be submitted
via e-mail by not later than 3pm the day before the date of the meeting.

AGENDA

Please Note: The Carson Water Subconservancy District (CWSD) Board may: 1) take agenda items out of order; 2)
combine two or more items for consideration; and/or 3) remove an item from the agenda or delay discussion related to
an item at any time. All votes will be conducted by CWSD Board of Directors. Reasonable efforts will be made to assist
and accommodate individuals with disabilities who wish to attend the meeting. Please contact Catrina Schambra at
(775)887-7450 (catrina@cwsd.org), at least two business days in advance so that arrangements can be made.

Call to Order the CWSD Board of Directors/Carson River Watershed Committee
Roll Call
Pledge of Allegiance

o h =

For Discussion Only: Public Comment - Action may not be taken on any matter brought
up under public comment until scheduled on an agenda for action at a later meeting.

5. For Discussion Only: Presentation to Steve Thaler for his years of service on CWSD
Board

For Possible Action: Approval of Agenda

For Possible Action: Approval of the Board Meeting Minutes of January 20, 2021
CONSENT AGENDA

Please Note: All matters listed under the consent agenda are considered routine and may be acted upon by the
Board of Directors with one action and without an extensive hearing. Any member of the Board or any citizen may
request that an item be taken from the consent agenda, discussed, and acted upon separately during this meeting.

8. For Possible Action: Approval of Treasurer’s Report for January 2021

9. For Possible Action: Approval of Payment of Bills for January 2021



mailto:catrina@cwsd.org
mailto:catrina@cwsd.org

Carson Water Subconservancy District Board of Directors and
Carson River Watershed Committee
2/17/2021 Meeting Agenda

10.

11.

12.

13.
14.
15.
16.

17.
18.
19.
20.

21.

For Possible Action: Approve agreement with River Wranglers to conduct flood
awareness outreach to the schools in the Carson River Watershed in an amount not to

exceed $8,500

For Possible Action: Approve agreement with Casey Neilon, Inc. to provide auditing
services for the next three years in the amount of $13,900 per year

**END OF CONSENT AGENDA**

For Discussion Only: A presentation by CWSD staff to give an overview of CWSD

activities and financials

For Discussion Only:

For Discussion Only:

For Discussion Only:

For Discussion Only:

For Discussion Only:

For Discussion Only:

For Discussion Only:

For Discussion Only:

Review the draft Community Drinking video
Presentation on the Watershed Wednesdays App
Update on 2021 Water Year

Staff Reports - General Manager

- Legal

- Correspondence

Directors Reports

Update on activities in Alpine County

Update on activities in Storey County

Public Comment - Action may not be taken on any matter brought

up under public comment until scheduled on an agenda for action at a later meeting.

For Possible Action: Adjournment

Supporting material for this meeting may be requested from Catrina Schambra at 775-887-7450 (catrina@cwsd.org) and is
available on the CWSD website at www.cwsd.org.

In response to COVID-19 Emergency Directive:

Posting in public buildings in accordance with NRS 241.020 has been waived by COVID-19 Emergency Directive #6
of Governor Sisolak. Therefore, this notice and agenda of video conference meeting has been posted on or before
9am on February 9, 2021 on the following websites for the February 17, 2021 regular meeting of the Carson Water
Subconservancy District and the Carson River Watershed Committee, in accordance with NRS 241.020:

Carson Water Subconservancy District Website:

http://www.cwsd.org

State of Nevada Public Meetings Website:

http://notice.nv.gov



mailto:catrina@cwsd.org
http://www.cwsd.org/
http://www.cwsd.org/
http://notice.nv.gov/

AGENDA ITEM #5



CARSON WATER SUBCONSERVANCY DISTRICT

TO: BOARD OF DIRECTORS
FROM: EDWIN D. JAMES
DATE: February 17, 2021

SUBJECT: Agenda Iltem #5 —For Discussion Only: Presentation to Steve Thaler for his
years of service on CWSD Board

CWSD recognizes Steve Thaler for his years of service on our Board of Directors from
January 2017 through December 2020.



AGENDA ITEM #7

MINUTES OF LAST
BOARD MEETING



DRAFT

CARSON WATER SUBCONSERVANCY DISTRICT
BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND
CARSON RIVER WATERSHED COMMITTEE MEETING

January 20, 2021

Draft Minutes

The CWSD January 20, 2021 Board of Directors meeting was held via Zoom
Videoconference and teleconference due to Governor Sisolak’s statewide
Emergency Directive in response to the COVID-19 Pandemic.

Catrina Schambra called the meeting of the Carson Water Subconservancy District (CWSD) to
order at 6:30 pm. Roll call of the CWSD Board was taken and a quorum was determined to be
present.

CWSD Directors present:

Stacey Giomi, Director
Ken Gray, Director

Jack Jacobs, Director
David Nelson, Director
Pete Olsen, Director

Lisa Schuette, Director
Fred Stodieck, Director
Mike Workman, Director

Absent Directors: John Engels, Mark Gardner, and Ernie Schank

Roll call of the Carson River Watershed Committee was taken which included CWSD Directors
and Committee Members present: Kathy Canfield, David Griffith, and January Riddle.

CWSD Staff & Guests present:

Jim Atkinson, Public

Phyllis Atkinson, Andy Aldax Award Recipient
Georgette Bummer, Public

Tina Carlsen, Public

Linda Conlin, River Wranglers

Meg Evans, Public

Shane Fryer, Watershed Program Specialist
Jessica Garcia, Reporter - Nevada Appeal

Rob Holley, Dayton Valley Conservation District
Holly Holwager, Public

Adrienne Hoskins, Public

Brenda Hunt, Watershed Program Manager
Edwin James, General Manager

Patrick King, CWSD Attorney

Debbie Neddenriep, Water Resource Specialist 11
Darcy Phillips, River Wranglers

Kevin Piper, Public

Catrina Schambra, Administrative Assistant/Secretary to the Board
Katie Smith, Watershed Technician — AmeriCorps

1 1-20-2021



DRAFT

The Pledge of Allegiance was led by Catrina Schambra.
Item #4 — Discussion Only: Public Comment — None.

Item #5 — For Possible Action: Approval of Agenda

Director Gray made a motion to approve the agenda with Item 9 tabled until
February meeting. The motion was seconded by Committee Member Griffith and
unanimously approved by the Board.

Item #6 — For Possible Action: Approval of the Board Meeting Minutes of Dec. 16, 2020

Director Jacobs made a motion to approve the Board Meeting Minutes of
December 16, 2020. The motion was seconded by Director Giomi and
unanimously approved by the Board.

Item #7 — For Possible Action: Selection of CWSD Officers for 2021 & 2022

Mr. James explained the policy of selecting officers of the Board. Based on the requirements for
each position and their willingness to serve in the role for a 2-year term the following Directors
are proposed as officers effective January 2021 — December 2022:

e Stacey Giomi, Chairman

e Ken Gray, Vice Chairman

e Ernie Schank, Treasurer

e (Catrina Schambra, Secretary to the Board

Director Jacobs made a motion to approve the proposed officers as presented for
2021-2022. The motion was seconded by Committee Member Griffith and
unanimously approved by the Board.

Item #8 - For Discussion Only: Presentation of 2021 Andy Aldax Award

Chairman Giomi presented the 2020 Andy Aldax award to Phyllis Atkinson with many friends,
colleagues, and family members in attendance for the occasion. Ms. Atkinson thanked CWSD for
giving her this award for doing what she so loves to do. She is a retired Carson City Teacher who
still volunteers to help River Wranglers as often as she can. Several audience members spoke to
honor her many years of service and dedication to the Carson River Watershed and its students.

No action was taken.

Item #9 - For Discussion Only: Presentation of Board Service Recognition to Steve
Thaler

Item #9 TABLED until February 17, 2021 meeting.
Item #10 - For Discussion Only: Introduction of Board Members and CWSD Staff

This is the first meeting for new CWSD Directors David Nelson, Pete Olsen, and Lisa
Schuette; and Committee Member January Riddle. All in attendance took a few minutes
to introduce themselves to others in the group.

No action was taken.

2 1-20-2021



DRAFT

**CONSENT AGENDA**

Item #11 - For Possible Action: Approval of Treasurer’s Report for December 2020

Iltem #12 - For Possible Action: Approval of Payment of Bills for December 2020

Item #13 - For Possible Action: Approval of the Addendum to Agreement Number
with HDR to increase the MAS 4 Model and Mapping Update Project contract in the
amount of $4,406.

Item #14 - Approval of Time Extension to Interlocal Contract #2019-12: DVCD
Bank Stabilization/Channel Restoration Upstream from Dayton Bridge

Director Workman made a motion to approve Consent Agenda as presented. The
motion was seconded by Committee Member Griffith and unanimously approved by
the Board.

**END OF CONSENT AGENDA**

Item #15 - For Discussion Only: Presentation by Rob Holley regarding DVCD River
Projects

Rob Holley gave an update to the Board on Dayton Valley Conservation District and status of
their projects in the watershed. DVCD is currently evaluating their 30 ongoing projects
inventory. Mr. Holley provided pictures and explained the progress of several that are funded by
CWSD and discussed his goals for the future.

No action was taken.

Item #16 - For Discussion Only: Update on the NV State Parks Recreational Trail Grant
application

Shane Fryer gave a report on the grant CWSD applied for to upgrade and extend the aquatic trail.
CWSD applied for a grant of $150,000 and was awarded $90,000 toward the project. Mr. Fryer
showed an animated video showing the original plan. The scope of work will need to be
adjusted due to the grant award. The Mexican Dam portage and improving signage along the
trail will be the focus. The video showed why focusing on the Mexican Dam is an important
priority as a safety issue. The was also discussion on the importance of working with landowners
in this project and how that has been progressing. This is an exciting improvement that will
enhance safety in the recreational use of the river. Chairman Giomi commented the Carson City
Prison Hill trail through Silver Saddle plan will tie nicely into this project. Mr. Fryer expects to
apply again for the funds to complete the original plan in the future.

No action was taken.

Item #17 - For Discussion Only: Discussion on the upcoming virtual “Watershed
Wednesdays” program

Brenda Hunt gave an update on the progress of the planning for the 2021 CRC Watershed Forum:
Watershed Wednesdays. There will be a series of workshops held each Wednesday in March.
There are 5 Wednesdays and each one with have a different theme for the workshop. They will
be (1) Outreach & Education; (2) Recreation; (3) Floodplain Protection; (4) Climate Resilience;

3 1-20-2021



DRAFT

and (5) Floodplain Management. Each Wednesday will start at 9am with premiers and
presentations that will be viewed via the CWSD YouTube channel and will be followed with a
Zoom meeting Q&A session with all attendees and presenters. Each session will end by noon.
Ms. Hunt explained each area of focus. She is pleased with the list of presenters who have
signed on to the project and is looking forward to a really great event.

No action was taken.
Item #18 — For Possible Action: Selection of CWSD Committee Members for 2021 & 2022

Mr. James explained the 4 committees and their purpose for the new Board members. They are
listed below with those who volunteered to serve on each:

1. Administration Committee - Directors Giomi, Gray, Griffith, Nelson, Olsen, and
Stodieck. - This committee deals with personnel issues, contracts, policies, and
other administrative issues.

2. Finance Committee- Directors Schank (as Treasurer), Griffith, Jacobs, Schuette,
and Workman. - This committee reviews proposed budget and budget
augmentations, funding requests, and requests for potential water rights
purchases.

3. Legislative Committee - Directors Gardner, Giomi, Gray, Nelson, and Schank.-
This committee would review proposed legislation. (NOTE: This committee does
not have an Alpine County representative because it is primarily dealing with
Nevada legislation. However, Alpine County representatives are encouraged to
bring any California or federal issues to the attention of the General
Manager/Board.)

4. Regional Water System & Flood Committee - Directors Jacobs, Olsen, Riddle,
Schuette, Stodieck, and Workman. - This committee focuses on the regional
programs, recharge projects, future construction, water quality, and flood issues.

Director Gray made a motion to approve committee assignments as noted above.
The motion was seconded by Director Jacobs and unanimously approved by the
Board.

Item #19 - For Discussion Only: Update on 2021 Water Year

Mr. James gave a slide presentation on the 2021 Water Year to the Board.
No action was taken.
Item #20 — For Discussion Only: Staff Reports —

Mr. James reported on the following:
e Legislative Committee will be meeting soon to go over the upcoming legislative session.

e Looking at a possible end of February date for 4 hour, bi-annual strategic planning
session. Will keep Board advised of planning progress.

Legal — None

Correspondence — Letter to Senator Settelmeyer; Support Letters for Washoe Tribe projects (2)
4 1-20-2021



DRAFT

No action was taken.
Item #21 — For Discussion Only: Directors Reports — None

No action was taken.
Item #22— For Discussion Only: Update on activities in Alpine County — None

No action was taken.
Item #23— For Discussion Only: Update on activities in Storey County — None

No action was taken.
ltem #24 — For Discussion Only: Public Comment — None

There being no further business to come before the Board, Chairman Giomi adjourned the
meeting at 8:36 pm.

Respectfully submitted,
Catrina Sctambra

Secretary to the Board

1-20-2021



AGENDA ITEM #8

TREASURER’S REPORT













































AGENDA ITEM #9

PAYMENT OF BILLS


















AGENDA ITEM #10



CARSON WATER SUBCONSERVANCY DISTRICT

TO: BOARD OF DIRECTORS
FROM: EDWIN D. JAMES
DATE: FEBRUARY 17, 2021

SUBJECT: Agenda ltem #10 — For Possible Action: Approve agreement with River
Wranglers to conduct flood awareness outreach to the schools in the Carson River
Watershed in an amount not to exceed $8,500

DISCUSSION: CWSD sent out a request for proposals to conduct flood awareness
outreach to the various school’s in the watershed. CWSD received one proposal. The
proposal came from the River Wranglers. CWSD has done several projects with the River
Wrangler organization and are aware of their capabilities. The funding for this project is
coming out of the FEMA MAS 10 grant. Attached is the proposed agreement.

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Authorize the Chairman to sign the agreement.



DRAFT CWSD Non-Profit Agreement #2021-20

Agreement

Addressing Funding from Carson Water Subconservancy
to River Wranglers
to assist with Carson River Watershed Flood Awareness Outreach Program

This Agreement is entered into by and between RIVER WRANGLERS, a non-profit association
(hereinafter "RW") and the CARSON WATER SUBCONSERVANCY DISTRICT, a political subdivision of
the State of Nevada (hereinafter "CWSD").

WITNESSETH:

WHEREAS, RW is a 501(C)(3) non-profit organization; and

WHEREAS, RW has organized a program for Flood Awareness Outreach to Schools Located in
the Carson River Watershed, which is further described in Exhibit "A" attached hereto and incorporated
herein by reference; and

WHEREAS, CWSD is a water subconservancy district created and organized under the
provisions of Chapter 541 of NRS; and

WHEREAS, this Contract is entered into under the provisions of NRS 277.180 and must be
ratified by appropriate official action of the governing body of each party as a condition precedent to its
entry into force; and

WHEREAS, CWSD and RW each possess common objectives and responsibilities regarding the
Carson River; and

WHEREAS, RW has requested funding to perform work during FY2021 and FY2022 on Carson
River Watershed Flood Awareness Projects; and

WHEREAS, CWSD has agreed to set aside $8,500 and to grant RW said amount to assist with
the projects set forth in Exhibit "A;" and

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the premises and of the mutual covenants herein
contained, it is mutually agreed by and between the parties as follows:

1. CONTRACT TERM:

CWSD hereby grants to RW $8,500 to assist with Carson River Watershed Flood Awareness Outreach
Program:

a As identified and described in Exhibit "A"; and

RW will submit requests for funding periodically. The request for funding shall be
accompanied by a description of what the funds will be used for and shall reference this
Contract.

c CWSD commits to pay the approved amount of the request to RW within four (4) weeks
of said request.

d RW will submit Project Summary Reports (see Exhibit “B”), including before and after
project pictures, project goals, etc., prior to final invoice payment or ten percent of grant
funding will be withheld until reports are submitted.

e CWSD shall have no responsibility for costs exceeding $8,500.
1of9

Non-Profit Agreement #2021-20 River Wranglers-FAW -FEMA MAS 10



DRAFT CWSD Non-Profit Agreement #2021-20

f This Contract shall terminate June 30, 2022, at which time RW shall have one (1) month
thereafter to submit its final invoice for payment related to work performed under this
Contract.

g If circumstances arise that require a time extension to complete the project, the CWSD

Board grants the General Manager authority to do so in a written notice to RW.

h Notwithstanding any other provision of this Agreement, any obligation of CWSD
hereunder is conditioned upon CWSD's funding resources. If for whatever reason the
CWSD's funding resources are reduced or eliminated, CWSD reserves the right to
terminate this Agreement immediately in writing. CWSD will reimburse RW for all costs
that occurred under this Agreement up to the date the Agreement is terminated.

2, LIMITED LIABILITY AND INDEMNIFICATION:

a. Each party shall indemnify, hold harmless and defend (not excluding the others right to
participate) the other party from and against all liability, claims, actions, damages, losses,
and expenses, including, but not limited to, reasonable attorneys’ fees and costs, arising
out of any alleged negligent or willful acts or omissions of the indemnifying party, its
officers, employees, and agents. Such obligation shall not be construed to negate,
abridge, or otherwise reduce any other right or obligation of indemnity which would
otherwise exist as to any party or person described in this paragraph.

b. The indemnification obligation under this paragraph is conditioned upon the receipt of
written notice of claim by the indemnified party to the indemnifying party within thirty (30)
days. The hold harmless and indemnification provision shall not apply to attorneys’ fees
and costs for the indemnified party’s chosen right to participate with legal counsel.

C. The parties acknowledge or agree that the contract was written and agreed by both
parties.

d. Prior to the institution of any litigation the parties agree to mediate.

e. Prior to commencing the activities that constitute the Project, RW shall deliver to CWSD a

certificate issued by its insurance carrier naming CWSD as an additional insured and
stating that the policy will not be modified or cancelled without 30 days’ notice to CWSD.

3. RW shall provide CWSD insurance as follows:

a. General Liability Insurance: Prior to commencement and for the duration of activities that
constitute the Project that is the subject of this Contract, RW shall maintain commercial
general liability (CGL) as follows:

i. Two Million Dollars ($2,000,000.00) - General Aggregate.

ii. Two Million Dollars ($2,000,000.00) - Products & Completed Operations
Aggregate.

iii. One Million Dollars ($1,000,000.00) - Each Occurrence.

iv. CGL insurance shall be written on ISO occurrence form CG 00 01 04 13 (or a
substitute form providing equivalent coverage) and shall cover liability arising
from premises, operations, products-completed operations, personal and
advertising injury, and liability assumed under an insured contract [(including the
tort liability of another assumed in a business contract)].

V. CWSD, its officers, employees and immune contractors shall be included as an
insured under the CGL, using ISO additional insured endorsement CG 20 10 or
CG 20 26, or a substitute providing equivalent coverage, including coverage
under the commercial umbrella, if any.

20of9

Non-Profit Agreement #2021-20 River Wranglers-FAW -FEMA MAS 10



4,

5.

Vi.

Vii.

viii.

DRAFT CWSD Non-Profit Agreement #2021-20

This insurance shall apply as primary insurance with respect to any other
insurance or self-insurance programs afforded to CWSD There shall be no
endorsement or modification of the CGL to make it excess over other available
insurance; alternatively, if the CGL states that it is excess or pro rata, the policy
shall be endorsed to be primary with respect to the additional insured.

There shall be no endorsement or modification of the CGL limiting the scope of
coverage for liability assumed under a contract.

RW waives all rights against CWSD and its agents, officers, directors, and
employees for recovery of damages to the extent these damages are covered by
the commercial general liability or commercial umbrella liability insurance
maintained pursuant to this Contract. Insurer shall endorse CGL policy as
required to waive subrogation against CWSD with respect to any loss paid under
the policy.

b. Business Automobile Liability Insurance:

RW shall maintain automobile liability and, if necessary, commercial umbrella
liability insurance with a limit of not less than $1,000,000 each accident for
bodily injury and property damage.

Such insurance shall cover liability arising out of owned, hired, and non-
owned autos (as applicable). Coverage as required above shall be written
on ISO form CA 00 01, CA 00 05, CA 00 25, or a substitute form providing
equivalent liability coverage.

RW waives all rights against CWSD and its agents, officers, directors, and
employees for recovery of damages to the extent these damages are
covered by the automobile liability or other liability insurance obtained by RW
pursuant this Contract.

c. Workers Compensation Insurance

iv.

RW will secure and maintain Workers Compensation during the period of the
contract.

NOTICE: For invoicing and notice purposes, the address of each party is as follows:

RW CWSD

Attn.: Darcy Phillips Attn.: Edwin James
Executive Director General Manager

P.O. Box 1612 777 E. William St., #110
Dayton, NV 89403 Carson City, NV 89701
(775) 856-9268 (775) 887-7450

MISCELLANEOUS:

a.

This Contract shall be by and between the parties hereto and shall not be assignable or
transferable.

Any dispute regarding this Contract shall be decided according to the laws of the State
of Nevada. The Parties consent to the jurisdiction of, and agree that disputes will be
resolved by, the courts of the First Judicial District Court of the State of Nevada in
Carson City. If any part of this Contract is declared to be unlawful, any remaining
obligations shall be deemed terminated.

This Contract may only be amended by consent of both parties. Any amendments must

30f9

Non-Profit Agreement #2021-20 River Wranglers-FAW -FEMA MAS 10



DRAFT CWSD Non-Profit Agreement #2021-20

be written and executed with the same formality as this Contract.

d. This Contract constitutes the entire understanding between the parties and there are
no representations, conditions, warranties, or collateral agreements (expressed or
implied), statutory or otherwise, with respectto the subject of this Contract.

e. The Parties are associated with each other only for the purposes and to the extent set
forth in this contract. Each Party is a public agency separate and distinct from the other
Party. Nothing contained in this contract may be deemed or construed to create a
partnership orjoint venture, to create relationships of an employer-employee or
principal- agent, to convey ownership of any asset, or to otherwise create any liability
for one Party whatsoever with respect to the indebtedness, liabilities, and obligations of
the other Party.

f. The Parties agree to keep and maintain, under general accepted accounting principles,
full, true, and complete records, agreements, books, and documents pertaining to this
contract, and at the request of the other Party agree to present, at any reasonable time,
such records, agreements, books, and documents for inspection, examination, review,
audit, and copying at any office where such records, agreements, books, and
documents are maintained.

g. Pursuant to NRS 239.010, information or documents, including this contract, may be
open to public inspection and copying. The Parties will have the duty to disclose unless
particular information or documents are made confidential by law or a common law
balancing of interest. To the extent that information or documents are made
confidential, the Parties shall keep such information or documents confidential.

h. This contract does not contemplate any transfer of property or ownership interest
between the Parties and the Parties will each maintain ownership of their own facilities.

i. Except as otherwise provided for by law or this contract, the rights and remedies of the
Parties shall not be exclusive and are in addition to any other rights and remedies
provided by law or equity.

J- Failure to declare a breach or the actual waiver of any particular breach of this contract
or its material or nonmaterial terms by either Party shall not operate as a waiver by
such Party of any of its rights or remedies as to any other breach.

K. Neither Party shall be deemed to be in violation of this contract if it is prevented from
performing any of its obligations hereunder due to strikes, failure of public
transportation, pandemic, civil or military authority, act of public enemy, accidents, fires,
explosions, or acts of God, including, without limitation, earthquakes, floods, winds, or
storms. In such an event the intervening cause must not be through the fault of the
Party asserting such an excuse, and the excused Party is obligated to promptly
perform in accordance with the terms of the contract after the intervening cause
ceases.

l. Any dispute regarding this Contract shall be decided according to the laws of the
State of Nevada. The Parties consent to the jurisdiction of, and agree that disputes
will be resolved by, the courts of the First Judicial District Court of the State of
Nevada in Carson City. If any part of this contact is declared to be unlawful, any
remaining obligations shall be deemed terminated.

m. Each provision of this Agreement shall be considered severable and if for any reason
any provision or provisions herein are determined to be invalid, unenforceable, or
illegal under any existing or future law, such invalidity, unenforceability, or illegality
shall not impair the operation of or affect those portions of this Agreement that are

4 of 9

Non-Profit Agreement #2021-20 River Wranglers-FAW -FEMA MAS 10



DRAFT CWSD Non-Profit Agreement #2021-20

valid, enforceable, and legal.

6. PROPER AUTHORITY:

a. This Contract becomes effective when ratified by appropriate official action of the
governing body of each party; however, the RW can submit expenses that have been
incurred from March 1, 2021, forward.

b. The parties hereto represent and warrant that the person executing this Contract on
behalf of each party has full power and authority to enter into this Contract and that the
parties are authorized by law to engage in cooperative action set forth herein.

C. This Contract shall be entered into with duplicate originals, realizing that each entity, by
necessity, must approve and execute the subject document at different dates, times, and
places.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Contract on the day and year first
written above.

DATED: DATED:
CARSON WATER
RIVER WRANGLERS SUBCONSERVANCY DISTRICT
Dan Kaffer, Chairperson Stacey Giomi, Chairman
ATTEST: ATTEST:
Eric Johnson, Secretary Catrina Schambra, Secretary to the Board
50f9

Non-Profit Agreement #2021-20 River Wranglers-FAW -FEMA MAS 10



DRAFT CWSD Non-Profit Agreement #2021-20

Exhibit A

P.O. Box 1612, Dayton, NV 89403

www.riverwranglers.org

775.386.2743

Thank you for allowing River Wranglers to engage our community and students in
flood awareness. What follows includes our program goals, timeline, and budget.

PROJECT GOALS

GOAL: Develop interactive, high-quality virtual content via google classroom that is
standards-aligned for 3" grade and middle school students. We will create engaging
activities that students can do alone at home, or in a classroom as a group — dependent
on how the teacher wants to use it. This will include video content of the models as well
as graded activities related to flood awareness. The goal with this content is to make it
such that it can be used even if we return to fully in-person events in the future.

GOAL: Recruit at least one elementary and one middle school in each of four counties
(Douglas, Lyon, Churchill, Carson), and an elementary school in Alpine and Storey
counties. This will include both virtual and live programming, depending on what is
allowed. This is flexible and can include both pieces. We envision creating virtual
content that can be used even if/when we return to fully in-person programming.

GOAL: Plan, advertise, and staff one small, family-style event in the four major
counties related to flood awareness. These events will be outdoors, near the river, and
will include education and activities, dependent upon county restrictions.

GOAL: 25% return rate on coloring books for elementary students and contact sheet
for middle school students. We will supply coloring books for elementary students and
will create a contact sheet/emergency plan form for middle school students. Each will

6 of 9

Non-Profit Agreement #2021-20 River Wranglers-FAW -FEMA MAS 10


about:blank

DRAFT CWSD Non-Profit Agreement #2021-20

be delivered prior to the start of programming, and students who return their filled-out
sheets will receive a reward.

GOAL: 75% return on Survey Monkey. We will create pre- and post- tests to evaluate
the retention of information.

TIMELINE
DATES TASK
March-May 2021 Develop online, standards-aligned curriculum for 3™ grade
and middle school
June — August 2021 Scripting/filming for online curriculum and flood “tour” of

the watershed

August — October 2021 | Recruit teachers, deliver flood booklets, roll out curriculum

June 2021-June 2022 Small flood awareness events in at least 4 of the 6 counties
October — May 2022 Pre-and Post- tests for participating classrooms, live events
if allowed, deliver rewards to students who bring back info
sheet
June 2022 Wrap-up reports, analyze data
7 of 9

Non-Profit Agreement #2021-20 River Wranglers-FAW -FEMA MAS 10



DRAFT CWSD Non-Profit Agreement #2021-20

BUDGET

TASK AMOUNT

Develop virtual, standards-aligned content $2,700.00
Recruit teachers 340.00
Mileage 280.00
Scripting/Filming 1,500.00
Small flood awareness events (planning, advertising, 1,300.00
executing)

Deliver flood booklets/school events 1,700.00
Survey 340.00
Rewards for students/Event take-away 500.00

TOTAL: $8,500

80of9

Non-Profit Agreement #2021-20 River Wranglers-FAW -FEMA MAS 10




DRAFT

CWSD Non-Profit Agreement #2021-20

Exhibit B

Project Summary Form

Project name

Type of Project

Map ID#

Per Stewardship Plan Maps if previously mapped

Date Started

Date Completed

Location Details/Address

Add Project # Latitude Longitude
Add Project # Latitude Longitude
Add Project # Latitude Longitude

HUC

Contact Person

Primary Objective

(What will the project achieve? Was the objective achieved?)

Area restored/stabilized

Add linear feet of project/acreage/an applicable measurable unit/material used (rock,
plants, etc.)

Estimated Load Reduction

Only if applicable

Total Project Cost

$

Project Partners

List all partners

Tracking Updates and Milestones

Date

Activity

Add data and expand table/insert
rows as required

Add data and expand table/insert rows as required

Project Photos:

Before construction:

After construction:

Title: Example Photos (replace with specific project)

90of9

Non-Profit Agreement #2021-20 River Wranglers-FAW -FEMA MAS 10




AGENDA ITEM #11



CARSON WATER SUBCONSERVANCY DISTRICT

TO: BOARD OF DIRECTORS
FROM: EDWIN D. JAMES
DATE: FEBRUARY 17, 2021

SUBJECT: Agenda Iltem #11 — For Possible Action: Approve agreement with Casey
Neilon, Inc. to provide auditing services for the next three years in the amount of $13,900
per year.

DISCUSSION: CWSD sent out a request for proposals for a new auditing firm. CWSD
sent out the request to several auditing firms and placed an ad in the newspaper. We
heard back from some of the firms that they do not perform Single Audits. One firm
withdrew due to potential conflict. CWSD received one proposal. This firm was highly
recommended by Carson City. On January 26, 2021, Ed James, Catrina Schambra, and
Treasurer Ernie Schank interviewed the auditor. After the meeting, all three of us agreed
that Casey Neilon Inc. will do a good job for CWSD. The costs are slightly higher than the
old firm, but we knew that the old firm was going to increase their fees. Attached are the
proposed agreement and Exhibit A.

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Authorize the Chairman to sign the agreement.



1)

4)

CWSD Contractor Agreement #2021-19

DRAFT

Agreement

Carson Water Subconservancy District (hereinafter “CWSD”) and Casey Neilon, Inc. (hereinafter “NEILON”)
hereby enter into an agreement whereby NEILON will provide professional auditing services in accordance with
and subject to the following terms and conditions:

ASSIGNMENT

NEILON’s assignment shall relate to the following product(s) or service(s):

Provide professional auditing services for Fiscal Years Ended June 30, 2021 through June 30, 2023,
which is further identified and described in Exhibit “A,” the compensation paid to NEILON for professional
auditing services each year shall be $13,900 with an additional $2,200 if a Single Audit is required:

Financial Single
Statement Audit
Audit (if necessary)
June 30, 2021 $13,900 + $2,200
June 30, 2022 $13,900 + $2,200
June 30, 2023 $13,900 + $2,200

INDEMNITIES

(a)

(d)

To the fullest extent permitted by law NEILON shall indemnify, hold harmless and defend, not excluding
the CWSD's right to participate, the CWSD from and against all liability, claims, actions, damages,
losses, and expenses, including, without limitation, reasonable attorneys' fees, and costs, arising out
of any alleged negligent or willful acts or omissions of NEILON, its officers, employees, and agents.

CWSD will indemnify and hold NEILON harmless with respect to any claims or actions instituted by
third parties which result from the use by NEILON of material furnished by CWSD or where material
created by NEILON is substantially changed by CWSD. Information or data obtained by NEILON from
CWSD to substantiate claims made in advertising shall be deemed to be "materials furnished by
CcwsD."

In the event of any proceeding against CWSD by any regulatory agency or in the event of any court
action or self-regulatory action challenging any advertising prepared by NEILON, NEILON shall assist
in the preparation of the defense of such action or proceeding and cooperate with CWSD and CWSD’s
attorneys. CWSD will reimburse NEILON any out-of-pocket costs NEILON may incur in connection with
any such action or proceeding.

Neither party waives any right or defense to indemnification that may exist in law or equity.

INSURANCE

Unless otherwise required in this Agreement, the CWSD and NEILON shall, during the performance of
the services as provided herein, maintain insurance of the types and amounts specified, and with insurers
satisfactory to the other party as follows:

a)

b)

c)

Comprehensive General Liability including $1,000,000 per occurrence for bodily injury and property
damage; $1,000,000 Products/Completed Operations Aggregate; $1,000,000 General Aggregate
over all interests.

Comprehensive Automobile Liability including coverage for owned, non-owned, and hired vehicles:
$1,000,000 Bodily Injury, $1,000,000 Property Damage.

NEILON shall name CWSD as an additional insured and deliver a certificate to CWSD.

TERM OF AGREEMENT

Contractor Agreement #2021-19 NEILON

Page 1 of 5



CWSD Contractor Agreement #2021-19

DRAFT

a) The term of this Agreement will commence on the date of the last signature executed hereon and will
continue in full force and effect until November 30, 2023 unless extended by written agreement of the
parties.

b) NEILON will submit monthly invoices with a description of activities preformed.

c) In the event of termination of this Agreement, the rights, duties, and responsibilities of NEILON shall
continue in full force during the period of notice.

d) If circumstances arise that require a time extension to complete the project, the CWSD Board grants
the General Manager authority to do so in a written notice to NEILON.

PERFORMANCE

Should NEILON fail to perform any of the services provided for in Exhibit “A”, CWSD shall notify NEILON
of such non-performance and allow thirty (30) days for NEILON to remedy the performance. If the
performance has not been satisfied within thirty days, CWSD may withhold payment only for the services
not performed in accordance with this Agreement.

SUPPLEMENTS TO AGREEMENT

The following Exhibits are an integral part of this Agreement:
(a) Exhibit A NEILON Proposal

INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR

NEILON acknowledges that it is furnishing the services contemplated by this Agreement hereto as an
independent contractor, and not as an employee, or agent of CWSD or any of its affiliates.

OWNERSHIP

Any reports, histories, studies, tests, manuals, instructions, photographs, negatives, blue prints, plans,
maps, data, system designs, computer code (which are intended to be considered under this Agreement),
or any other documents or drawings, prepared, or in the course of preparation, by NEILON (or its
subcontractors) in performance of its obligations under this Agreement shall be the exclusive property of
CWSD and all such materials shall be delivered into CWSD’s possession by NEILON upon completion,
termination, or cancellation of this Agreement. NEILON shall not use, willingly allow, or cause to have such
materials used for any purpose other than performance of NEILON's obligations under this Agreement
without the prior written consent of CWSD.

AGREEMENT TERMINATION

(a) Termination Without Cause. Any discretionary or vested right of renewal notwithstanding, this
Agreement may be terminated upon written notice by mutual consent of both parties or unilaterally by
either party without cause.

(b) Cause Termination for Default or Breach. A default or breach may be declared with or without
termination. This Agreement may be terminated by either party upon written notice of default or
breach to the other party as follows:

(1) If NEILON fails to provide or satisfactorily perform any of the conditions, work, deliverables,
goods, or services called for by this Agreement within the time requirements specified in this
Agreement or within any granted extension of those time requirements; or

(2) If any State, county, city, or federal license, authorization, waiver, permit, qualification, or
certification required by statute, ordinance, law, or regulation to be held by NEILON to provide the
goods or services required by this Agreement is for any reason denied, revoked, debarred,
excluded, terminated, suspended, lapsed, or not renewed; or

(3) If NEILON becomes insolvent, subject to receivership, or becomes voluntarily or involuntarily
subject to the jurisdiction of the bankruptcy court; or

Contractor Agreement #2021-19 NEILON

Page 2 of 5



10)

11)

12)

13)

CWSD Contractor Agreement #2021-19

DRAFT

(4) If CWSD materially breaches any material duty under this Agreement and any such breach
impairs NEILON's ability to perform; or

(c) Time to Correct. Termination upon declared default or breach may be exercised only after service of
formal written notice and the subsequent failure of the defaulting party within thirty (30) calendar days
of receipt of that notice to provide evidence, satisfactory to the aggrieved party, showing that the
declared default or breach has been corrected.

(d) Winding Up Affairs Upon Termination. In the event of termination of this Agreement for any reason,
the parties agree that the provisions of this Section survive termination:

(1) The parties shall account for and properly present to each other all claims for fees and expenses
and pay those which are undisputed and otherwise not subject to set off under this Agreement.
Neither party may withhold performance of winding up provisions solely based on nonpayment of
fees or expenses accrued up to the time of termination;

(2) NEILON shall satisfactorily complete work in progress at the agreed rate (or a pro rata basis if
necessary) if so requested by the CWSD;

(3) NEILON shall execute any documents and take any actions necessary to effectuate an
assignment of this Agreement if so requested by the CWSD; and

(4) NEILON shall preserve, protect, and promptly deliver into CWSD possession all information in
accordance with Section 8, Ownership.

RIGHTS UPON TERMINATION

Upon termination of this Agreement, NEILON shall transfer, assign, and make available to CWSD or
CWSD’s representative, all property and materials in their possession or control belonging to and paid for
by CWSD, subject, however, to any rights of third parties of which NEILON has informed CWSD.

BREACH REMEDIES.

Failure of either party to perform any obligation of this Agreement shall be deemed a breach. Except as
otherwise provided for by law or this Agreement, the rights and remedies of the parties shall not be
exclusive and are in addition to any other rights and remedies provided by law or equity, including but not
limited to actual damages. If the court awards reasonable attorney's fees to the prevailing party, in an
amount to be determined by the Court.

The parties acknowledge or agree that the contract was written and agreed by both parties.
Prior to the initiation of any litigation the parties agree to mediate.
PUBLIC RECORDS

Pursuant to NRS 239.010, information or documents received from NEILON may be open to public
inspection and copying. CWSD has a legal obligation to disclose such information unless a particular
record is made confidential by law. NEILON may label specific parts of an individual document as a "trade
secret" or "confidential" in accordance with NRS 333.333, provided that NEILON thereby agrees to
indemnify and defend CWSD for honoring such a designation. The failure to so label any document that is
released by CWSD shall constitute a complete waiver of any and all claims for damages caused by any
release of the records.

NOTICES

Any notice pursuant to this Agreement will be addressed to the following parties:

Edwin James, General Manager Nicola Neilon, CPA, CGMA
Carson Watershed Subconservancy District Casey Neilon, Inc.

777 E. William Street, Suite 110 A 503 N. Division Street
Carson City, NV 89701 Carson City, NV 89703
edjames@cwsd.org nneilon@caseyneilon.com

Contractor Agreement #2021-19 NEILON

Page 3 0of 5


mailto:edjames@cwsd.org
mailto:nneilon@caseyneilon.com

CWSD Contractor Agreement #2021-19

DRAFT

14) FORCE MAJEURE
Neither party shall be held responsible for any delay or failure in performance of any part of this
Agreement to the extent such delay or failure is caused by fire, flood, explosion, war, embargo,
government requirement, civil or military authority, act of God, or other similar causes beyond its control
and without the fault or negligence of the delayed or non-performing party. The affected party will notify
the other party in writing within ten (10) days after the beginning of any such cause that would affect its
performance. Notwithstanding, if a party's performance is delayed for a period exceeding thirty (30) days
from the date the other party receives notice under this paragraph, the non-affected party will have the
right, without any liability to the other party, to terminate this agreement.

15) HEADINGS
Headings in this Agreement are for convenience only and are not intended to be used in
interpreting or construing the terms, covenants, and conditions of this Agreement.

16) ENTIRE AGREEMENT
This Agreement constitutes the whole agreement between the parties with respect to the
subject matter contained herein, and there are no terms other than those contained herein. No
modification or amendment of this Agreement shall be valid unless in writing and signed by the
parties hereto.

17) SEVERABILITY
Each provision of this Agreement shall be considered separable and if for any reason any provision or
provisions herein are determined to be invalid, unenforceable, or illegal under any existing or future law,
such invalidity, unenforceability or illegality shall not impair the operation of or affect those portions of
this Letter that are valid, enforceable and legal.

18) GOVERNING LAW
This Agreement shall be interpreted in accordance with the laws of the State of Nevada pertaining to
contracts made and performed entirely therein. If the above accords with the parties’ understanding and
agreement, kindly indicate consent hereto by signing in the place provided below.

Accepted and Agreed on behalf of: Accepted and Agreed on behalf of:

Carson Water Subconservancy District Casey Neilon, Inc.

Signature Date Signature Date

Edwin D. James Nicola Neilon

General Manager CPA, CGMA , Shareholder

Contractor Agreement #2021-19 NEILON

Page 4 of 5



CWSD Contractor Agreement #2021-19

DRAFT

Exhibit A

Contractor Agreement #2021-19 NEILON
Page 5 of 5



CASEY NEILON

January 7, 2021

Edwin James, General Manager

Carson Water Subconservancy District
777 East William Street

Suite 1 10A

Carson City, NV, 89701

Dear Mr. James:

It is our pleasure to have the opportunity to submit this proposal to provide audit services to the Carson Water
Subconservancy District (CWSD) for the years ended June 30, 2021 through June 30, 2023.

| would like to take this opportunity to introduce our company, Casey Neilon, Inc. (a Nevada corporation). We
are a local public accounting firm with offices in Reno and Carson City, that is dedicated to providing high quality
accounting, auditing and tax services to our clients. We are currently staffed with 21 employees including 7
certified public accountants and 6 non licensed accountants. Our staff has a long history of auditing private
companies, state and local governmental entities and non profits in the State of Nevada. We currently provide

attest and tax services to many companies, NFPs and governmental entities with revenues ranging from a low of
less than $500,000 to a high of over $300 million.

The contact person for this proposal is:

Nicola Neilon, CPA, GGMA, Shareholder

503 N Division St, Carson City, NV 89703 (775) 283-
5555 ext. 102; (775) 283-0494 (fax)
nneilon@caseyneilon.com

Please do not hesitate to contact me for any questions regarding this proposal.

Very truly yours,

Kboa KO

Nicola Neilon, CPA, CGMA

503 N. Division St. 6770 S. McCarran Blvd, Ste. 200
Carson City, NV 89703 -l Reno, NV 89521
775 283 5555 775 .329.9999 1



Table of Contents

Information About Proposer ...t 3
Firm Principals and Key Personnel ............ccccooiiiiiiiiiiiii 4

Governmental EXperience ... 4
Engagement Personnel ...........oooiiiiiiiiii e 4
SEAf CONTINUILY .oneeeie et e s e e e e s s e e e e e neeesneeennneennnee s 5

INAEPENAENCE ... ettt e st e s bt e e st e bt e e e e st e e e ne e e nnne e 5
License to Practice in Nevada ..........ccoceeviiiiiiiiiiicii e 5

Continuing EAUCAtION ........ccuiiiiiiiiiiiiii 5
INSUrANCe COVEIAZE ..ot 5

Terminations for Default, Settlements or Pending Terminations ..........c.ccccoooveiiiiiiiiiniiiniecnieens 5

Americans with Disabilities ............ccooiiiiiiiiiiii e 5
Records RELENTION ........coviiiiiiiiiicii e e s s s 6
Timeframe for Deliverables ............cccooiiiiiiiiiiiii e 6

WVOIK PrOZIam . ..o ettt e s bt e bt e e st e e st e e e ae e e saeeesnneesnneeeane 6
AUIT PIAN e e e e nneees 8
Cost Proposal ... 10
Proposal ACCEPLANCE ........cc.ciiiiiiiiiiiii e 11
SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION ...ttt s e s e 12
Proposed Staff RESUMES ..ot st sn e 13
Nicola Neilon, CPA, CGMA ... 13
SUZANNE OSEN, CPA ..ottt ettt e e e e ettt e e e e e e e assesesaaaasseeessarassseeessaanssssesnns 14
Haley MUNNS ... e e e e s e e s ean e 15
Jennifer Miller, CPA ... .o e s s 16

Peer REVIEW REPOIt ... ..o e e s e e 17



Information About Proposer

Casey Neilon, Inc. is a Nevada public accounting firm, organized as a corporation. The Company has two
offices located in Reno and Carson City. The staff in each office works cooperatively, and the engagement
would be staffed from employees of both the Reno and Carson City offices. The Company was formed
in 2006 as the result of a demerger from a large regional accounting firm. From our inception, the
Company has grown in size and experience and we currently have 21 staff members.

The Company is committed to the education and technical growth of our staff, and all staff that would be
assigned to your engagement have had significant accounting and auditing education in the form of inhouse
seminars, self-study, and attendance at local and national conferences. This dedication to continuing
education is a focal point of our firm. All members of our proposed engagement team receive more than
the minimum required education under professional standards, and all of our professional staff (including
non licensed staff) receives in excess of 40 hours per year in total continuing education, which exceeds
our requirements under state law and professional standards. We encourage our staff to obtain continuing
professional education in fields appropriate to the type of accounting work that they are providing;
therefore our senior staff have governmental and non profit specific education.

We provide national firm resources and capabilities through our affiliation with Alliott Group North
America, an association of over 100 public accounting and legal firms worldwide. The Alliott Group is an
exclusive worldwide association of independent accounting, legal and consulting firms founded to pursue
excellence and quality in accounting and business consulting services. Management and staff from these
firms work with us to provide the requisite industry and service expertise when required. These
resources differentiate us from other proposers as we can provide the staffing and price of a local firm,
but also have the resources of a national organization to assist with technical issues.

Our most recent peer review was completed in September 2017, and we have enclosed a copy of the
report in the supplemental materials to this proposal. We received a rating of “Pass”, which is the highest
rating level available. Peer reviews are completed every three years and we are proud to provide our
report as part of the proposal/engagement process.

When providing an audit, or any other type of service, the premium value that we provide is much greater
than a financial statement. We accompany our reports with actionable advice and a presentation of the
financial statements. Helping you realize your full potential is a natural extension of a comprehensive
business relationship. You are given recommendations that we feel would improve your efficiency and
we look for opportunities that you may capitalize upon. All this is done in a professional manner, making
certain that each member of your management team and your staff is treated courteously and with the
utmost respect.

We focus on the following key performance parameters:

*  Provide the most beneficial management letter possible — The training provided to our upper level
staff in management advisory skills is unique and valuable.

*  Provide excellent client service — We are dedicated to the ongoing needs of our clients. We go to
great lengths to customize our services to fit our client’s specific needs.

»  Develop strong client relationships — We have an excellent client retention record and our reputation
in the State of Nevada is excellent.

*  Maintain efficiency — We continue to strive to train our audit staff on audit efficiency principles.

*  Maximize partner involvement — Our partners are involved in all aspects of our engagements, from
planning to fieldwork and final review.



Firm Principals and Key Personnel

Darsi Casey, CPA, MST
Nicola Neilon, CPA, GGMA
Suzanne Olsen, CPA

Lucas Gonzalez, CPA

Leslie Kidd, CPA

Debra Vaughan

Governmental Experience

The Company has been engaged to perform the following governmental engagements (this list is not
exhaustive):

» State of Nevada, Public Employees’ Benefit Program, Self-Insurance Trust Fund; financial statement
audit; June 30, 2006 — 2020

» State of Nevada, Insurance Premium Trust Fund; financial statement audit; June 30, 2006 — 2020

» State of Nevada, Public Employees’ Benefit Program, State Retirees Health and Welfare Benefit
Fund; financial statement audit; June 30, 2008 — 2020

» State of Nevada, Retirement Benefits Investment (“Fund”); financial statement audit; June 30, 2013
—-2020

* Tahoe Douglas District, financial statement audit; June 30, 2014 — 2020

*  Public Compensation Mutual; financial statement audit, December 31, 2007 — 2020

e Public Risk Mutual; financial statement audit, December 31, 2004 — 2020

* Minden Gardnerville Sanitation District; financial statement audit June 30, 2016 — June 30, 2020

* Nevada State Board of Medical Examiners, financial statement audit; December 31, 2019

» State of Nevada, Nevada Public Employees Deferred Compensation Program, financial statement
audit; June 30, 2019 — 2020

» State of Nevada, Nevada FICA Alternative Deferred Compensation Plan, financial statement audit;
June 30, 2019 - 2020

* Nevada State Board of Podiatry, financial statement audit; June 30, 2020

* Nevada State Board of Professional Engineers and Land Surveyors, financial statement audit; June
30, 2020

* Carson City Culture and Tourism Authority, financial statement audit; June 30, 2020

Prior single audit experience includes Douglas County, Carson City and the Tahoe Regional Planning
Agency.

Engagement Personnel

The Company proposes that the following personnel would be assigned to the audit of the CWSD:
Shareholder in charge — Nicola Neilon, CPA, CGMA — resume included (lead auditor)

Compliance shareholder — Suzanne Olsen, CPA, resume included

Single Audit specialist — Jennifer Miller, CPA, resume included
Senior Accountant/In charge — Haley Munns, resume included



Staff Continuity

Key engagement personnel is expected to remain consistent throughout your engagements. Staff
accountants may vary from year to year due to the natural progression from staff accountant to senior
accountant. It is not cost effective for multiple seniors to be involved on a single engagement. If the current
senior was to be removed from the engagement for any reason, the replacement would be an employee
who has been previously staffed on your company’s audit.

We are committed to this staff continuity as we believe it increases efficiency and ensures that your
engagement’s personnel includes staff most familiar with your company and its industry.

Independence

Casey Neilon, Inc. is independent of Carson Water Subconservancy District as defined under professional
standards.

Casey Neilon, Inc. has had no professional relationships with CWSD that would constitute a conflict of
interest.

Casey Neilon, Inc. does not have any client relationships that may have a financial interest in the outcome
of the audit.

Casey Neilon, Inc. commits to provide CWSD with written notice of any professional relationships
entered into during the period of this engagement that may cause a conflict of interest.

License to Practice in Nevada

Casey Neilon, Inc. and all key professional staff are properly licensed to provide accounting and auditing
services in the State of Nevada. Copies of licensing information are provided in the supplemental materials
to this proposal.

Continuing Education

All staff working on, or associated with the engagement to audit CWSD meet the continuing education
requirements of professional standards, and have obtained significant hours of continuing education in the
field of governmental auditing and accounting.

Insurance Coverage

The Company currently carries the following insurance coverage:

Commercial general liability $2,000,000 each occurrence, $4,000,000 aggregate

Workers’ compensation statutory

Professional liability $2,000,000 per claim, $4,000,000 policy aggregate

Terminations for Default, Settlements or Pending Terminations

The Company has not experienced any terminations for default, settlements or pending terminations.

Americans with Disabilities

The Company is knowledgeable about, and complies with the requirements of the ADA.



Records Retention

All records related to the engagement will be maintained in accordance with the Company’s record
retention policy of seven years and will be available to CWSD or its designees for examination upon
request.

Timeframe for Deliverables

Final reports would be available prior to November 30th of each year. A preliminary draft of the audit
would be presented or available to be presented to the Board of Directors For the November board
meeting.

Work Program

This engagement plan reflects our commitment to provide CWSD with timely, efficient and constructive
audit services. It gives special attention to early identification and resolution of problems and provides
for timely response on technical matters.

Scope of work Audit: The primary purpose of our audit is to express an opinion
(examination of the financial statements) on the fairness of presentation
of the financial statements of the governmental activities and each major
fund of the Carson Water Subconservancy district for the years ended
June 30, 2021 through June 30, 2023. Our audit will be conducted in
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America, as included in Statements on Auditing Standards
published by the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants; the
standards for financial audits contained in Government Auditing
Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, and
any other applicable rules, regulations, or accounting standards
If required a single audit prepared for the federal award program would
be performed in accordance with American Institute of Certified Public
Accountant (AICPA) Standards, Government Auditing Standards, the
Single Audit Act Amendments of 1996, and the Office Management and
Budget (OMB) Circular A-133, Audit of States, Local Governments, and
Non-Profit Organizations.

Final reports are to be delivered to CWSD no later than November 30th.
This deadline is dependent on obtaining complete, accurate and timely
information from CWSD.

Deliverables The deliverables shall include:

* The auditors’ report on the financial statements, required
supplementary information and supplementary information,
government wide and fund financial statements, including
required disclosures and compliance reports and schedules
including single audit reports and schedule of expenditures of
federal awards, if necessary.



Working Papers

Additional Services

Audit Policies and
Procedures

* A management letter that details any areas that we have identified
that are not considered to be significant deficiencies or material
weaknesses, but that could assist management in improving
internal controls or operating effectiveness.

*  We will provide a written communication to those charged with
governance as required by AU-C Section 260 that details the
significant audit findings, including:

O qualitative aspects of accounting practices, 0 difficulties
encountered in performing the audit, O corrected and
uncorrected misstatements, O disagreements with
management, O management representations

O management consultations with other independent
accountants
0 other audit findings or issues

O Should a Single Audit be required, we will provide the following:
0 Report on Compliance with Requirements Applicable to
Each Major Program and on Internal Control Over
Compliance in Accordance with OMB Circular A-133
0 Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs 0 Opinion
(or disclaimer of opinion) as to whether the Authority
complied with federal statutes, regulations, and the terms
and conditions of federal awards that could have a direct
and material effect on each major program.

All audit work papers shall be retained in accordance with our firm policy,
but in no event for less than 7 years, and will be available to the CWSD
for examination upon request.

Upon request of CWSD management, we will be available to provide
assistance and give advice regarding accounting, reporting, and updates to
best practices. Advice and services that fall outside of the scope of the
audit and that requires significant research or consultation may be subject
to additional fees; but, as stated above, under no circumstances would
any additional fees be incurred without consent of CWSD management
and amendment to the scope of this proposal. Additional services outside
the scope of the audit will be billed at our hourly rates which range from
$75 - $365 per hour.

Casey Neilon Inc. utilizes framework of audit policies and procedures

which enable us to perform quality work in a timely and efficient manner.
These policies are designed to implement the profession’s standards and
utilize advanced concepts of risk identification and analysis.

Appreciation of these concepts particularly facilitates our analysis of
three critical audit variables:

*  Areas of specific audit risk



*  Control measures in place to mitigate such risks 00 The
effectiveness of these controls

The quality of the audit is ultimately determined by the firm’s knowledge and

Audit Plan

understanding of its client and by appropriate risk assessment procedures,
and tailoring of the audit plan to address the risks identified. Because
Casey Neilon, Inc. is a local firm, we can effectively relate to our client’s
business environment and remain accessible to our clients throughout the
year.

We have prepared a preliminary plan for the audit as of June 30, 2021. The final schedule will, of course,
be subject to your review and approval; we have the flexibility to make revisions as necessary to meet
your needs. The following summarizes our audit approach with a description of each major phase. The
work in each phase will be performed by the audit staff under the direct supervision of the project

supervisor and partners.

Advance planning
(Prior to year end)

Audit planning involves all members of the audit team as required by
professional standards. Advance planning involves scheduling and staffing
as well as a general risk analysis and a fraud risk analysis to determine
areas of general and specific concern and to identify areas where CWSD
personnel can be utilized to minimize time and maximize efficiency.

Additionally, as there would be a transition of audit firms, our initial
planning would include communication with the predecessor auditor
regarding matters of audit significance and a review of their workpapers
to enable us to rely on the audit work performed over beginning balances.
This review would also provide us with information regarding the
consistency of accounting policies and procedures and assist us in
identifying matters of concern for the upcoming audit.

An effective and efficient audit must be planned to carefully analyze
control procedures in place, to determine that the controls adequately
safeguard assets and to ensure accurate and complete accounting data is
available to promote operational efficiency and to encourage adherence
to managerial policies. If effective controls are in place, we will rely on
them in determining the nature, timing and extent of audit tests to be
performed. Our documentation of systems and procedures will include
questionnaires and narrative descriptions of the transaction flow of major
systems.

During this phase, we will obtain an understanding of the five components
of internal control that is sufficient to assess the risk of material
misstatement of the financial statements whether due to error or fraud,
and to design the nature, timing, and extent of further audit procedures.
This evaluation will be done at an opinion unit level. This evaluation will
also assist us in planning the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements, including note disclosures, are free of
material misstatement, whether caused by error or fraud, and material
misstatements arising from illegal acts that have a direct and material
effect on the determination of financial statement amounts, as well as

7



Professional standards

Field work

planning the audit to provide reasonable assurance of detecting material
misstatements that result from violations of provisions of contracts or
grant agreements that could have a direct and material effect on the
determination of financial statement amounts or other financial data
significant to the audit objectives.

also require communications with other parties providing specialized
services that relate to the audit.

During this phase of the audit we will meet with the management of
CWSD to identify significant business and environmental factors that
impact the financial reporting of CWSD and prepare the confirmations
for cash, investments, and any receivables considered necessary.
Additionally, we will finalize the timetable for obtaining the records and
analyses of accounts to be prepared by the association employees in
anticipation of field work. We will also determine the need for a single
audit and plan accordingly.

Field work consists primarily of substantive testing and documentation

(September - October) of
* Cash
* Accounts, grants and loans receivable
*  Fixed assets
*  Accrued expenses and liabilities
* Deferred inflows and outflows of resources
* Bond liabilities
*  General revenues and operating grants
*  Expenses

Draft reports

Compliance Review

The audit methodologies employed are a matter of judgment, and are
dependent upon our risk analysis. Our engagement team utilizes
analytical procedures during our preliminary risk assessment to reduce
substantive testing in low risk areas and also during substantive testing for
those accounts for which reasonable expectations can be set. We utilize
third party confirmations for cash, investment and receivables, and obtain
SOCI/SSAE 18 reports from service organizations to assist in identifying
controls at these organizations that may reduce our required audit
procedures. For accounts with a significant volume of transactions we
employ a combination of statistical sampling and scope testing depending
on the risk involved in the accounts. We have invested heavily in
technology to ensure that data is transferred securely and that audit
procedures are performed efficiently and effectively.

At the conclusion of field work October ; audit comments pertaining to
the prepared draft financial statements will be forwarded to CWSD for
review and comment. Once comments have been received from CWSD
the draft report will be submitted for Compliance Review.

The financial statements will be reviewed by a shareholder independent



( November )

Exit conference
( November )

Final reports
( November )

Report Presentation

of fieldwork and skilled in financial reporting requirements. This review
is to ensure compliance with presentation and disclosure standards as
well as compliance with firm quality control standards.

We will review the draft financial statements with CWSD management.
At this time the management letter will be available for review. This letter
will communicate material audit findings and recommendations affecting
the financial statements, internal control system, accounting systems,
computer systems and any other matters. Findings may include
reportable conditions, material weaknesses and management comments
as considered necessary. Discussions will occur throughout the audit
cycle to keep management apprised of our findings and concerns.

Once the draft reports have been approved by both CWSD
management and the compliance partner, electronic and hard copies of
the final reports and management letter will be issued.

The financial statement audit will be presented to the Board of Directors
at the November board meeting.

We assert that the timelines set forth in this proposal can be achieved, and we commit to ensuring
that these timelines are met provided that all data required from CWSD is received in a timely

manner.

Cost Proposal

Our proposed fee for each year of the three year audit period $13,900 for the financial statement audit
and $2,200 for a single audit if necessary.

Any out-of-pocket expenses incurred would be charged at their cost to us. These fees are expected to
be less than $100 and are primarily for electronic confirmations.

We appreciate the opportunity to provide you with this proposal, and look forward to your consideration
of it. If you have any questions, do not hesitate to call us.

Very truly yours,

L..LCIJV( {w\k ne__

Nicola Neilon, CPA, CGMA

Proposal Acceptance

Accepted by:

Carson Water Conservancy District



SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION

Nicola Neilon, CPA, CGMA Key
Name: Personnel: YES
Shareholder (Yes/No)

BRIEF SUMMARY OF PROFESSIONAL EXPERIENCE

Ms. Neilon is a shareholder of the public accounting firm of Casey, Neilon Inc. From 2001 to 2006, Ms.
Neilon was a manager and then a partner at the public accounting firm of KBCA, LLC, and prior to that a
manager in the statewide accounting firm of Kafoury, Armstrong & Co.

Ms. Neilon has over twenty years of experience in the public accounting field, and during that time has
provided strategic growth and technical tax strategies for closely held businesses and business owners.
Ms. Neilon specializes in accounting, tax and auditing services for state and local governments and special
districts, captive insurance companies, business and tax consulting for small to medium sized businesses,
non profits and individuals. The consulting work has included working with trust and estate planning, and
working co-operatively with other service providers to develop sound strategies for estate planning.

ENGAGEMENT EXPERIENCE

Ms. Neilon’s experience with auditing began in 1997 working with state and local governments, special
districts, non profits, self-insured groups, and since then has included auditing insurance funds of the State
of Nevada, and tax, auditing and consulting services for pure, agency and cell captives as well as risk
retention groups. Ms. Neilon provides tax and audit services to many non profit organizations Ms. Neilon
is currently the engagement shareholder on many of the audit engagements of the firm.

EDUCATION

Bachelor of General Studies, University of Nevada, Reno — May/1995
Accounting Licensure Program, University of Nevada, Reno — May/1997
Graduate Certificate in Taxation, Golden Gate University — August/2002

CERTIFICATIONS

Certified Public Accountant — 6/30/1999

COMMUNITY INVOLVEMENT

Treasurer, Nevada Public Health Foundation

Member, Carson Tahoe Health Foundation Advisory Council (former Foundation Treasurer)
Treasurer, Friends of the Governor’s Mansion

Member, Nevada State Board of Accountancy




Suzanne Olsen, CPA Key
Name: Personnel: YES
Shareholder (Yes/No)

BRIEF SUMMARY OF PROFESSIONAL EXPERIENCE

Ms. Olsen is a shareholder at the public accounting firm of Casey Neilon, Inc., From June 2005 to October
2006, Ms. Olsen was a staff accountant at the public accounting firm of KBCA, LLC.

Ms. Olsen has fifteen years of experience in the public accounting field. During that time she has gained
experience in the preparation of both individual and business tax returns, auditing and attestation services
for funds of the State of Nevada, small to medium sized businesses, non-profit organizations, and insurance
enterprises.

RELEVANT EXPERIENCE

Ms. Olsen’s experience with auditing began in 2006 working with funds of the State of Nevada, and since
then has included auditing additional funds of the State of Nevada, as well as audit, review, full disclosure
compilation services, tax return preparation and consulting for private enterprises and non profits. Ms.
Olsen is currently an engagement shareholder on many attest engagements of the firm.

EDUCATION

Bachelor of Science in Business Administration, University of Phoenix — June/2004 Accounting
Licensure Program, University of Nevada, Reno — June/2010

| CERTIFICATIONS |
Certified Public Accountant — |/17/2012

| COMMUNITY INVOLVEMENT |

Past Treasurer, Dayton Pop Warner Football League
Past President, Western Chapter NVCPA

Key
S H.ale}\' Munr;s . Personnel: YES
enior Accountan (Yes/No)

BRIEF SUMMARY OF PROFESSIONAL EXPERIENCE ‘

Ms. Munns is a senior accountant at the public accounting firm of Casey Neilon, Inc., which was founded
in October 2006. From January 2017 to April 2018, Ms. Munns was an intern at Casey Neilon. From June
2018 to August 2018, she was an audit intern at the public accounting firm of Grant Thornton, LLP.




Ms. Munns has gained valuable experience in the public accounting field during this time; she has experience
in the preparation of both individual and business tax returns, auditing and attestation services for
governments, small to medium sized businesses, non-profit organizations, and insurance enterprises.

RELEVANT EXPERIENCE

Ms. Munns’ experience with governmental auditing began in 2018.

Relevant financial statement audit experience includes auditing funds of the State of Nevada, auditing
special districts and local authorities as well as audit, review, full disclosure compilation services, tax return
preparation and consulting for private enterprises and non profits.

EDUCATION

Masters of Accountancy, University of Nevada, Reno — May 2019
Bachelor of Science in Business Administration, Accounting, University of Nevada, Reno — May 2018

| CERTIFICATIONS

Certified Public Accountant — Estimated Licensure January 2021

Jennifer Miller, CPA Key
Name: . Personnel: YES
Supervisor (Yes/No)

‘ BRIEF SUMMARY OF PROFESSIONAL EXPERIENCE.

Ms. Jennifer Miller is an audit supervisor at the public accounting firm Bowman & Company, LLP. The firm
is located in Stockton, California and was founded in 1949.

Ms. Miller previously worked for a regional accounting firm and has over eight years of auditing experience
with non profit and for-profit organizations, employee benefit plans, affordable housing projects, and
government agencies. Jennifer is a specialist in Uniform Guidance and is a member of her firm’s in-house
Uniform Guidance Team.

RELEVANT EXPERIENCE

Ms. Miller’s specialties include audits, reviews, compilations, financial statement preparation, and Uniform
Guidance specifically in nonprofit organizations, government agencies, and other federal or state funded
agencies.

| EDUCATION \

Bachelor of Science in Business Administration, University of California, Berkeley

‘ CERTIFICATIONS

Certified Public Accountant






AGENDA ITEM #12



CARSON WATER SUBCONSERVANCY DISTRICT

TO: BOARD OF DIRECTORS
FROM: EDWIN D. JAMES
DATE: FEBRUARY 17, 2021

SUBJECT: Agenda Iltem #12 — For Discussion Only: A presentation by CWSD staff to
give an overview of CWSD activities and financials.

DISCUSSION: Staff was hoping to conduct a strategic workshop but due to the COVID
restrictions and board members availability, staff will give a presentation on CWSD
activities and financials. Attached are the three presentations that will be presented by
CWSD staff.

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Receive and file.



“dioSUIll NvEl lhilcgidlcu vvdilcisiicu
IVidiidgCITICIHIL FITUgIdll

Brenda Hunt
Watershed Program Manager
Shane Fryer
Watershed Program Specialist
Katie Smith
Watershed Program Technician — AmeriCorps



Storey

County
Carson City
Carson Canyon-
Carson City/Lyon County
Lyon
Douglas County County
3,965 square miles
606 in California
3,359 in Nevada
Six counties
Elevation range 3,000 to 11,460
Precip: 4-8” to over 40” in Sierra Nevada
Carson River 184 miles , Very limited upstream
storage, River fully appropriated Churchill County

Alpine County, CA



vvalcislhicd riogialll rrilialy Qudl



Uul VVUIK.



odioSUll Rvel CUalluull



o0 08

-y EVADA
Xy & oot

NEVADA DEPARTMENT OF
TRANSPORTATION

Conservation
Districts:
Carson Valley
Dayton Valley
Lahontan

CWMAs

O NRCS

Natural Resources
Conservation Service

C

TneNature €2

SAVING THE LAST GREAT PLACES ON EARTH



Adopt_ed by Adopted by
CWSD in 2007 CWSD Jan 2018

Both original and updated Stewardship
Plans meet EPA 319 criteria for
watershed plans

Formally adopted

by all 5 counties

along the Carson

River in 2008 and
2018

Adopted by
CWSD in
April 2015



HiLegidlcU vvdalcisiicU ridlitiilig diid ividlildgCiliciiy



CUlicrit Crialiciigcs

eeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeee


http://images.google.com/imgres?imgurl=http://oneseed.agros.org/mcms_site/uploads/images/large_18E2DF2C-3048-7B4D-A9D16B77DFB958AF.jpg&imgrefurl=http://oneseed.agros.org/%3FpageID%3D18E2DE32-3048-7B4D-A90B63166251AF8A&usg=__HuGb7khdmKL9Tghm0W6bPv38oZ8=&h=480&w=550&sz=30&hl=en&start=6&tbnid=Rn1NlSMpjX6kvM:&tbnh=116&tbnw=133&prev=/images%3Fq%3Dclean%2Bwater%26gbv%3D2%26hl%3Den%26sa%3DG

oo pidill ividiidgciliclit







AlLciTiduUvVe ruldies 101 Lalsoll nivel

--John Warpeha

--Western Water



Clean Water Act Responsibilities







Wood drive on the East Fork of the Carson. Holding the wood at Young’s Crossing, waiting for
a head of water that would permit floating it through Carson Valley. (Courtesy of Nevada State
Museum)



CUlirchic rmdinidai nnpdew
Ul VV



NIVET oOldHIZAalUiVlN & el idHiLduU ol



H1vVdoIvVE OPCELICS IVIdAlIdgClTICTIL



LuUuUuULAdLiviIl &

Vull CAdul |




CHIVITOrinieritdl cuuCadoli



Vvater Quantity



“Protect and support opportunities for public
recreational access to natural areas throughout the
watershed — including the river corridor — where
appropriate”.



LUCSLIVUINS T



Floodplain Management &
Water Supply

in the Carson River Watershed

Deborah Neddenriep, Water Resource Specialist 2, CFM
775-887-1260, debbie@cwsd.org



Floodplain Management



Adopted by all 6 counties
in the Watershed

Provides Community
Rating System points to
Carson City, Douglas
County and Storey County

8 flood mitigation
strategies

48 suggested actions to
implement strategies



Communities / Businesses save $6 in
disaster costs for every $1 spent on
hazard mitigation.

CWSD leverages mitigation funding
so counties can hold onto their $$8$.

* Natural Hazard Mitigation Saves: 2019 Interim Report, National Institute of Business Sciences
* https://www.nibs.org/page/mitigationsaves















STRATEGIES TO MITIGATE
FLOOD HAZARDS:

Protect Natural Floodplain
Function and Values

Set Higher Regulatory Standards

Collect Flood Data Information and
Maintenance

Balance Channel Migration and
Bank Erosion Monitoring

Increase Floodplainand Flood
Hazard OQutreach and Education

Reduce Infrastructure Impact

Map/Study Alluvial Fans

Minimize Stormwater Impacts




2012 FEMA Risk Map
Charter

Participates in Nevada
Silver Jackets

11 funding awards since
2011



Mapping Activity Statement (MAS)

%MAS #1 %Carson River Remap and Restudy - Lahontan to Dayton Valley & Discovery S 300,000

%MAS #2 %Carson River Remap and Restudy - Dayton Valley - Carson City S 300,000
MAS#3  Carson River Remap and Restudy - Carson Valley Phase 1 (H & H for Carson River) ~ $ 375000
Carson River Remap and Restudy - Carson Valley Phase 2 §

MAS #4 Added Community Outreach S 290,000

gEagIe Valley & Alpine Creek Letters of Map Revision (LOMRs), Smelter Creek & |
MAS #5 Sheckler Shunt Mitigation Studies & Community Engagment 'S 375,000

Goni Canyon & Ramsey Canyon Letters of Map Revision (LOMRs), Inundation Maps,
& Stephanie Lane Mitigation Study
MAS#6  &Community Engagment . S§ 327000

EJohnson Lane Area Drainage Master Plan (ADMP), Update FP Mgt Plan/Discovery,
Saliman/Voltaire LOMR

MA5#7&C0mmun'W0Utreach5475000 ............................
MAS#8  (North) Dayton Valley ADMP, Floodplain Ordinance Update, & Community Outreach $ 403,360
South Dayton Valley ADMP, N. Carson City Drainage Study, PineNut Creek LOMR & |
MAS#9  Community Outreach S 64983
: Churchill County Physical Map Revision, Ruhenstroth ADMP Phase 1, Carson City :

MAS#10  Drainage Study, & Community Outreach & 645550

Ruhenstroth ADMP Phase 2, Clear Creek & Smelter Creek LOMRS, Flood Forecast
MAS #11 Model, Web Access System, & Community Outreach S 640,000

Total $ 4,780,713




Learn more about these projects at

MAS #12 Projects Identified

Buckeye Creek Detention
Mitigation

Southeast Carson City Area
Drainage Study

Six Mile Canyon Hazard
Mitigation

Community Outreach

contact staff.

or


http://www.cwsd.org/flood-risk-mitigation-projects/




Water Supply


https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=nHP8Ppmf2Xs




Alpine Decree

regulates surface
water

Nevada State

Engineer regulates
groundwater



Project Goals:

Meet Future Water
Demands

Reduce Water Conflicts

Develop Potential Off-
stream Storage Matrix

Determine legal &
physical constraints to
water exchange/transfer
program



Water Supply


https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=CZgD8aCY1nM&list=PL9qPxTG9oWYQ7_Zn7rzKtWDJ0TJC_g5vS

Funds surface &
groundwater data
collection

Creates annual Water Rate
Advisory Report

Collects & Reports on Alpine
County Groundwater






CWSD Financials



Income

$3,000,000
$2,500,000
$2,000,000
$1,500,000 I
$1,000,000 _ . ! .
$500,000 | I |
SO
T X o L & %
00'0 0"’9 Q'VQ Q””Q 0“‘9 0‘50 QQ"Q 6\9 &
QT YT
B Ad Valorem Tax M Interest

B Water Lease

v
N
NY

9%
Y
3

N

Q

Misc.

W Grants



$3,000,000
$2,500,000
$2,000,000
$1,500,000 I I I
$1,000,000 I I m
|
||
]
$500,000
T > ® © & ® O
QQ'Q 0\"0 Q’VQ 0”"0 0“‘9 0‘"0 0“’9 6\'0 0‘50 d
O SIS S M M S S S S
B Administrative (1) Projects M Grants

Expenses

USGS m Studies

B Pipeline

W Transfers



Administrative Costs
700,000

600,000

500,000

400,000
300,000
200,000
100,000
[ ]
S S S S S N
Q Q

-100,000

o

B Administrative (1) ™ Net Change Grants



Funding Priorities

e Streambank and River Restoration
Projects

 Water Supply and Demand
* Floodplain Management

* Invasive Species

* Outreach and Education
 Water Quality

* Recreation

* Studies



Projected FY 2020-21 General Fund

Admin
19%

Projects
31%

Admin-Grant
11%

Prog-Grant
3%
Programs
11%

Studies
0%

Study-Grant
25%



Acquisition/Construction Fund

Proposed Project Costs
Beginning Fund Balance (6-30-20) $781,850
Proposed Projects for FY 20-21

Upstream Storage Evaluation S 34,000
Lyon County Right-A-Way Project $125,000
Total Expenses - $159,000
Transfer From General Fund $145,000

Ending Fund Balance $767,850



Proposed Future Regional Water System Projects

South Douglas County Pipeline Upsize $750,000
Gardnerville Water Co-GRGID Intertie $700,000
Lyon County/Stagecoach Upsize $300,000
Churchill County Regional Pipeline Upsize $460,000
Estimated Total S 2,210,00

Upstream Storage Project ??7?7?



Regional Water System List
Past Projects
Acquis./Const. Fund
(Since 1998)

Lost Lakes $330 K
CC Hwy 50 Pipeline Upsizing $259 K
Heybourne Pipeline Upsizing $350 K
Stagecoach Pipeline Upsizing $112 K
N. Do Co Reg Pipeline Design $500 K
Minden Reg Pipeline Design $100 K
Minden Reg Booster Station $200 K
Do Co Reg Booster Station $250 K
Do Co Reg Sierra Estates System S 25K
CC/Do Intertie Vista S$180 K

Total Expenditures $2,566 K



Floodplain Management Fund

Beginning Fund Balance (6-30-20) $405,127
Proposed Projects for FY 20-21

Flood Project SR 88-Minden S 40,000
TCID Flood Gate Project S 35,000
Total Expenses for All Projects $ 75,000

Ending Fund Balance $ 330,127






AGENDA ITEM #13



CARSON WATER SUBCONSERVANCY DISTRICT

TO: BOARD OF DIRECTORS
FROM: EDWIN D. JAMES
DATE: FEBRUARY 17, 2021

SUBJECT: Agenda Iltem #13 — For Discussion Only: Review the draft Community
Drinking video.

DISCUSSION: Staff will present the draft Community Drinking Water video to the CWSD
Board. The video is approximately 1:20 minutes long and is the second in our | AM
CARSON RIVER WATERSHED outreach campaign. The video is scheduled to premiere
in March during one of our Watershed Wednesdays Forum series mornings. Staff will
show the video, provide an overview of the campaign, and discuss next steps.

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Receive and file.



AGENDA ITEM #14



CARSON WATER SUBCONSERVANCY DISTRICT

TO: BOARD OF DIRECTORS
FROM: EDWIN D. JAMES
DATE: FEBRUARY 17, 2021

SUBJECT: Agenda Iltem #14 — For Discussion Only: Presentation on the Watershed
Wednesdays Forum App

DISCUSSION: Staff are internally developing an Android/IOs/browser App for the
Watershed Wednesdays Forum. A beta-build of the App will be demonstrated to the
CWSD Board. Staff are using a developer’s tool call “Glide” to create the App. In a
nutshell, Glide interprets an online database which contains all the images, text, and links
for the app. The App will create a shortcut on the end user’s devices to the online
database on which Glide displays as programed.

The key benefits are that both the software and hosting are completely free, updates
happen at the cloud level, and CWSD is not saving anything to the end user’s devices. No
special access, nor permissions are required.

There will be a short presentation on how to add the App to your device and how to
operate the App. During the demonstration highlights and updates on the Watershed
Wednesdays Forum will be given.

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Receive and file.



AGENDA ITEM #15



CARSON WATER SUBCONSERVANCY DISTRICT

TO: BOARD OF DIRECTORS
FROM: EDWIN D. JAMES
DATE: FEBRUARY 17, 2021

SUBJECT: Agenda Iltem #15 — For Discussion Only: Update on 2021 Water Year

DISCUSSION: Staff will give an overview of the water picture for the Carson River
Watershed

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Receive and file.



STAFF REPORTS



CARSON WATER SUBCONSERVANCY DISTRICT

TO: BOARD OF DIRECTORS
FROM: EDWIN D. JAMES
DATE: February 17, 2021

SUBJECT: Agenda ltem #16- For Information Only: Staff Report

DISCUSSION: The following is a list of meetings/activities (mostly virtual) attended by
Ed James and staff since the last Board meeting on January 20, 2021:

e 1/20/20 — Shane presented Drone update to NDEP
e 1/21/21 — Shane presented to NWRA Conference
e 1/21/21 — Ed attended NWS Drought Briefing

e 1/21/21 — Ed attended NWRA Geothermal Tour

e 1/21/21 — Debbie attended FEMA & Counties Mtg re: Potential High-Water Mark
Project

o 1/22/21 — Ed attended NWRA meeting
o 1/25/21 — 1/28/21 -Ed attended NWRA Conference
e 1/25/21 — Shane attended/supported NWRA Conference

e 1/26/21 — Ed & Debbie attended meeting to review draft of Churchill County Flood
Maps

e 1/26/1 — Ed & Catrina with Director Schank interviewed Auditor Casey Neilon

e 1/26/21 — Brenda, Shane, Debbie & Katie held Watershed Wednesdays Planning
Session

e 1/27/21 — Ed & Debbie attended USACE Silver Jackets meeting

e 1/28/21 — Ed attended NRCS Conservation Planning meeting

e 1/29/21 — Ed attended NWRA meeting

o 1/29/21 — Ed attended NWRA post conference meeting

e 2/1/21 — Ed & Catrina hosted CWSD Legislative Committee meeting
e 2/1/21 — Brenda, Shane, & Debbie attended TNC meeting

e 2/1/21 - Brenda attended Carson Valley Meet & Greet with Mauricia Baca, the new
TNC State Director



2/17/2021 CWSD Board Meeting
Agenda Item #20 - Staff Report

o 2/2/21 — Staff meeting (All)
e 2/2/21 — Ed attended meeting with State Engineer
e 2/3/21 - Ed, Debbie & Shane attended Web Access mtg w/ CC Staff

e 2/9/21 - Staff received presentation on the Truckee River Source Water/Watershed
Plan from NDEP and RCI

e 2/9/21 — Ed attended CTWCD meeting
e 2/11/21 — Debbie gave demonstration at NDWR NV Flood Awareness Week mtg

e 2/17/21 — Ed, Shane and Debbie attend meeting to discuss ArcGIS Options for
Online Drainage Study Maps w/ESRI

e 2/17/21 — Ed gave presentation to Douglas County on Water Supply

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Receive and file.



CORRESPONDENCE



January 22, 2021
Re: Andy Aldax Award

To all the CWSD board members | would like to again thank you
for choosing me as the 2021 recipient of the Andy Aldax Award.

Before receiving the award | read through the list of previous
recipients. There were a few names that | was very acquainted
with, and a few names that | have heard of before. Having my
name appear on this list with such outstanding people is humbling.

It is my hope that the work I have done, and continue to do, with
students provides our youth with a concern for the health of the
Carson River, and an appreciation for its natural beauty. We truly
live in a wonderful watershed.

Sincerely,
Phyllis Atkinson



A8 | Saturday, January 23, 2021 | Nevada Appeal

Overflowing with influence

Local teacher recognized for inspiring
students to sustain Carson River Watershed

By Jessica Garcia
jgarcia@nevadaappeal.com

inda Conlin of
the Dayton River
Wranglers always
appreciated Car-
son City teacher Phyllis
Atkinson’s natural ability
to engage students with
nature at the source.

Recalling a hike with a
group of students along a
trail in Ambrose Park in
Washoe County, Conlin
described Atkinson’s class-
room management skills
and aptitude for stimulat-
ing their curiosity about
the importance of water-
sheds and the surrounding
mountains.

“There’s one spot where
you hit the beach, and it’s
an expansive view of the
surrounding mountains
of Carson,” Conlin said. “I
always remember her hik-
ing with kids and stopping
at one point and asking
what the word ‘water-
shed’ means. Most adults,
frankly, don’t know what it

means.”

The CWSD has chosen
Atkinson to receive the
2021 Andy Aldax Carson
River Watershed Award
for Exemplary Service in
Conservation and Protec-
tion of the Carson River
Watershed. The honor
originated in 2007 and
was named for CWSD
board member and Carson
Valley resident Aldax who
died last February.

Recipients are selected
based on their commit-
ment to the watershed
by remaining engaged in
various activities for 10
years or more, producing
certain accomplishments
toward goals outlined in
the Carson River Water-
shed Vision Statement
and being a landowner,
community member or
employee of a federal, state
or local agency or working
in the watershed.

“It’s quite an honor to
be recognized in the same
breath as they have been,”
Atkinson said of being

named among past recip-
ients, including Conlin,
Richard Wilkinson, Lynn
Zonge, Pete Livermore,
Norm and Sue Frey and
Aldax himself with many
others.

Atkinson retired in 2019
from Pioneer High School
after 25 years in education
and spent 24 of them with
the Carson City School
District. She was nomi-
nated for the award by the
River Wranglers, a non-
profit that supports water
quality issues by collecting
data for local agencies, ed-
ucating local students and
the public and collaborat-
ing with state and federal
agencies through various
events and programs. The
organization in the past
has exhausted grant fund-
ing from the University
of Nevada, Reno Cooper-
ative Extension but has
been kept alive through
individual volunteers’ and
sponsors’ efforts.

Atkinson came from
Pittsburgh after being
offered a position with the
Bureau of Land Manage-
ment and wound up in
Ely at first. She came to

" SEND YOUR MESSAGE TO A LOVED ONE
: TO MAKE THEM FEEL SPECIAL :

The Rerord-Conrier

classiﬁeds@nevadanewsgroup.com
or call 775-881-SOLD (7653)

r ~
SUBMISSIONS CAN BE SENT WITH
NAME AND PHONE NUMBER TO

Carson City with her fam-
ily in 1993 and obtained
her first teaching position
two years later.

Conlin, now project co-
ordinator for the Wran-
glers but recently retired
as its executive director,
initially met Atkinson in
Silver Springs. While Con-
lin approached Atkinson
initially when she was
teaching at Carson Middle
School about providing
students with field expe-
rience along the Carson
River. Conlin recalled At-
kinson as being “complete-
ly open and excited” about
working in the classroom.
She asked if Atkinson
would put her eagerness
for water quality education
to use through field trips
for students.

“Linda Conlin wanted to
know if my classes would
be interested, but I was in
over my head,” Atkinson
said. “It was really hard
for me with two small kids
of my own. I said I would
love to, that I would love to
do that. Then, the princi-
pal came to me and said,
‘Linda has done so much,
you are going to go on this
field trip!””

That led to the next
20 years of her teaching
career and a partnership
with the Wranglers, inevi-
tably resulting in Atkinson
refining the curriculum
in ways that made it more
enjoyable for students to
learn. Kids were able to
check the pH and tem-
perature of the river water
as well as more practical
for staff to teach through
chemical test kits and ma-
terials, goggles and gloves.
It also became more acces-
sible and manageable for
the nonprofit to maintain.

“We just really connect-
ed,” Atkinson said of Con-
lin. “She taught me about
life.”

She also taught Conlin’s
daughter, Molly, and the
respect as educators was
reciprocated. Conlin said
Atkinson’s water moni-
toring trunk, provided by
the Nevada Division of
Water Quality Planning,
were just the right tools
to motivate students to
entering whatever fields
they decided to later as
scientists, teachers, manu-
facturers or even as artists
or politicians, all the while
appreciating Nevada’s nat-
ural landscapes.

“A good teacher is excit-
ed about what they teach,”
Conlin said. “She has
passion and that is what
helped her to link what she
is teaching, from the con-
cept that she is teaching in
the classroom, to the river,

Phillis Atkinson

in her science project or

in her science class. She
was being paid to teach,
but she certainly wasn’t
being paid to go above and
beyond to teach about the
Carson River.”

Atkinson finally retired
from Pioneer High School
last year after 25 years in
education. She had trans-
ferred there seeking some-
thing new after her time
at CMS, she said. She was
honored by PHS Principal
Jason Zona at the school’s
Employee of the Year
recognition event. Zona
complimented her for her
positive attitude and will-
ingness to take the “path
less traveled,” he noted.

“Along with Phyllis’ pro-
fessionalism, leadership,
success as science and CTE
teacher and department
lead at Pioneer, she always
had a pleasant and helpful
attitude,” Zona said. “She
mentored new teachers
and represented PHS at
CTE (Career and Techni-
cal Education) meetings
to help keep our program
supported in spite of our
small size.”

Darcy Phillips, execu-
tive director of the River
Wranglers, said Atkinson’s
contributions have been
invaluable for the orga-
nization’s ongoing work,
noting her ability to take
the work virtual and ask-
ing Atkinson to become a
consultant to transform
the field trip activities back
into a classroom setting
again.

“She is that once-in-a-
lifetime teacher that sticks
with you,” Phillips said.
“She’s the kind of teacher
that makes me want to go
back to high school to be

COURTESY

in her class! We are so for-
tunate that we get to work
with amazing teachers all
throughout the Carson
River watershed - tru-

ly - but Phyllis is one of a
kind. When COVID hit, we
had to reinvent ourselves
completely because we are
normally out at the river
with 100-plus kids.

“She kept us on task in
terms of standards and
how teachers work. ...

We could not have done
it without Phyllis. She’s
amazing. We love her
dearly.”

Atkinson was honored
Wednesday with this year’s
Andy Aldax award during
the CWSD’s monthly meet-
ing, where board members
shared their thoughts on
her as the best candidate
this year and others noting
her work as a board mem-
ber on the River Wran-
glers and Friends of Silver
Saddle Ranch, as well as
a High Sierra Resources
workshop instructor.

Kevin Piper of the
Dayton Valley Conserva-
tion District said he has
learned more from three
influential educators on
water issues, including At-
kinson, Conlin and Dayton
High School science teach-
er Sue Moreda.

“They’ve built quite a
pedestal and the work
they’ve done is insur-
mountable,” Piper said.

Atkinson expressed her
thanks to the board for the
honor.

“It’s overwhelming,” she
said, adding, “It’s great to
get out with the kids. You
never think about you're
going to get honored for
something just because
you have a passion for it.”



	2-17-21  #1 Bd Agenda
	#5 insert
	2-17-21 #5 Departing Board Member Recognition
	#7 insert (last minutes)
	2-17-21 #7 BD Mtg Minutes 1-20-2020 (DRAFT)
	#8 insert (TreasRpt)
	2-17-21 #8 Treasurers Report
	#9 insert (Pmt of Bills)
	2-17-21 #9 BILLS PAID REPORT
	#10 insert
	Page 1

	2-17-21 #10 (RW agreement)
	2-17-21 #10A #2021-20 RW -FEMA 10 FAW
	#11 insert
	Page 1

	2-17-21 #11 (auditor)
	2-17-21 #11A  #2021-19 NEILON Auditing Agreement
	2-17-21 #11B #2021-19A NEILON Auditing Agreement-EXHIBIT A
	#12 insert
	Page 1

	2-17-21 #12 (CWSD-Activities)
	2-17-21 #12A CWSD Brenda Presentation
	2-17-21 #12B CWSD Debbie Presentation
	2-17-21 #12C CWSD Finance PowerPoint
	#13 insert
	Page 1

	2-17-21 #13 (CWSD-COMMUNITY DRINKING WATER FILM)
	#14 insert
	Page 1

	2-17-21 #14 (CWSD-Watershed Wednesdays App)
	#15 insert
	Page 1

	2-17-21 #15  (Water Year)
	Staff reports
	2-17-21 #16 Staff Report
	Correspondence insert
	Page 1

	2-17-21 #16A Correspondence -Andy Aldax thank you_.docx
	2-17-21 #16B Nevada Appeal Article - Aldax Award -Phyllis Atkinson 1-23-21

